)]

al &S

- .
P4 Indiannica
. ,;,_,f Learning

Knowledge beyond horizons

NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the 22" Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of the Company will
be held on Monday, 215 September 2020 at 10.30 AM (IST) via Video Conference/any other electronic
means to transact the following business: -

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the company for the financial
year ended 31° March 2020 and the Report of Directors’ and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint Mr. Anil D Gala, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers Himself for re-
appointment as a Director and in this regard, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Anil
D Gala (DIN: 00092952), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible has offered
himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to
retire by rotation.”

3. To appoint Mr. Sanjeev J Gala, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers Himself for re-
appointment as a Director and in this regard, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr.
Sanjeev J Gala (DIN: 02096525), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible has
offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company,
liable to retire by rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
Ordinary Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re- enactment thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. Piyush Pravin Gada
(DIN: 02536236), who was appointed as an Additional (Independent) Director of the Company
with effect from 1°* August 2020 under section 161 of the Act, be and is hereby appointed as
an Independent Director of the Company to hold office for a term upto (3) three consecutive
years commencing 1% August 2020.”
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To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
Ordinary Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 181 and all other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof,
for the time being in force), consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of
Directors (herein referred to as ‘the Board’ which shall deem to include any committees thereof)
to contribute to bonafide charitable and other funds provided that the aggregate amount of
contribution to such funds in a financial year shall not exceed the limits as set out in Section 181
or a sum of Rs. 10 lacs (Rupees ten lacs only) whichever is higher.”

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
Special Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196,197 and 203 read with Schedule V
and all applicable provisions of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the
time being in force) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as approved
and recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration committee consent of the members be
and is hereby accorded to revise the remuneration of Mr. Sumit Gupta (DIN: 00039396),
Managing Director of the Company with effect from 1st June 2020 and as set out in the
Explanatory statement annexed to the Notice of the Meeting and upon the terms and conditions
and stipulations contained in the revised salary letter.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the remuneration including benefits, amenities and perquisites as set
out in the said revised Letter shall nevertheless be paid and allowed to Mr. Sumit Gupta as
minimum remuneration for any financial year in case of absence or inadequacy of profits for such
year, subject to the provisions prescribed under section 197 read with Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder and any other applicable provisions of the Act
or any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the other terms and conditions of appointment of Mr. Sumit Gupta
as Managing Director as recorded in the employment agreement dated 23rd August 2017
executed between the Company and Mr. Sumit Gupta shall remain the same.

For and on behalf of
Indiannica Learning Private Limited

Date: 29/08/2020

Place: New Delhi Ms. Meera Sawhney
Company Secretary
Mem No.A48522
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Notes:

1. Section 102(1) : Statement of material facts

Statement of material facts as required under section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is
annexed hereto.

2. Section 105(2) : Requirement of giving a reasonable prominence statement of proxy
A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY, OR, WHERE
THAT IS ALLOWED, ONE OR MORE PROXIES, TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF,
AND THAT A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER.

3. Section 105(6) : Proxy Form

Proxy Form in the prescribed Form No. MGT-11 is annexed hereto for the appointment of proxy
by the members. The Proxy Form in order to be effective should be duly completed and
deposited at the registered office of the Company on or before commencement of the general
meeting.

4, Section 113(1) : Representation in the general meeting by a body corporate

A body corporate, being a member of the company, may authorize any other person to act as
its representative in the general meeting of the company by passing a resolution of the Board
of Directors or any other governing body and above-mention resolution of the Board of
Directors or any other governing body in order to be effective must be delivered to the
company on or before commencement of the general meeting.

5. The Route Map, landmark and Attendance Slip are annexed herewith.
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

ITEM NO. 4

The company had, pursuant to the provisions of section 149, 150, 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, appointed Mr. Piyush Pravin Gada as Additional (Independent) Director with effect
from 1 August 2020, in compliance with the Act, to hold office for a term upto (3) three consecutive
years commencing 1°t August 2020, subject to approval of the Members of the Company.

Mr. Piyush Pravin Gada has given a declaration to the Board that he meets the criteria of Independence
as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act.

The Company also received:

(i) The consent in writing to act as a Director

(ii) Intimation that he is not disqualified under section 164(2) of the Companies Act

In opinion of the Board, Mr. Piyush Pravin Gada fulfills the conditions specified in the Companies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Appointment and qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

Except, Mr. Gada, none of the other Directors, Key managerial Personnel or their relatives are
concerned or interested in the resolution at item no. 4 of this notice.

ITEM NO. 5

Under Section 181 of the Companies Act 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company is authorized to
make contributions to charitable and other funds, provided that prior permission of the Members is
required for such contributions during a financial year exceeding five percent of its average net profits
during the three immediately preceding financial years.

The Company is in the educational sector, therefore the Company donates to various charitable
institutions and trusts in order to promote welfare of the children.

In view of the above, The approval of the Members is being sought, pursuant to Section 181 of the Act,
for authorizing the Board of Directors of the Company to make contributions to bona fide charitable
and other funds, in a financial year, exceeding five percent of the Company’s average net profits during
the three immediately preceding financial years subject to a limit of Rs. 10, 00,000/-(Rupees Ten Lacs
only). The board recommends the resolution for approval by the members of the Company.
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None of the Directors of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or
otherwise, in the resolution set out at Iltem No. 8.

ITEM NO. 6

Mr. Sumit Gupta was appointed as the Managing Director by the Board of Directors of the Company
w.e.f 16" May 2017. It was proposed to revise the remuneration of Mr. Sumit Gupta with effect from
1%t June 2020. For this purpose, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 12" June 2020 revised
the remuneration of Mr. Sumit Gupta, Managing Director of the Company owing to the current
outbreak of Covid-19, subject to approval of the members.

Further, the information as required under Section Il of Part Il of Schedule V of the companies Act,
2013 is as follows:

| GENERAL INFORMATION:
1. | Nature of Industry Publishing
2. | Date or expected date of | N/A
Commencement of commercial
production
3. In case of new companies, expected | N/A
date of commencement of activities
as per project approved by financial
institutions  appearing in  the
prospectus.
4. | Financial performance based on the | Financial year | Loss  before | Loss after tax
given indicators Tax
(In lakhs) (In Lakhs)
2018-2019 (2941) (2,865)
2019-2020 (1,834) (1,812)
5. | Foreigninvestments or collaborations, | Nil
if any
I INFORMATION ABOUT THE
APPOINTEE:
1. | Background Details Mr. Sumit Gupta is an alumnus of IIM Calcutta &
member of the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants, UK, the Institute of Company
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Secretaries of India and Institute of Cost Accountants
of India.
2. Past remuneration Rs. 1,56,00,000 Per annum
3. | Recognitions or awards N/A
4, Remuneration proposed Rs. 1,56,00,000 Per annum
5. Comparative remuneration profile | N/A
with respect to industry, size of the
company, profile of the position and
person
6. Pecuniary relationship directly or | NIL
indirectly with the company, or
relationship with the managerial
personal, if any
]] OTHER INFORMATION:
1 Reasons of loss or inadequate profits | Outbreak of COVID-19
2 Expected increase in productivity and | Barring unforeseen circumstances, the Company
profits in measureable terms. hopes to increase the revenue and profit by improved
margins in current year.
IV | DISCLOSURES
The following disclosures shall be
mentioned in the Board of Director’s
report under the heading “Corporate
Governance”, if any attached to the
financial statement:
(i) | All elements of remuneration package | It will be disclosed to shareholders
such as salary, benefits, bonuses,
stock options, pensions, etc of all the
directors.
(ii) | Details of fixed component and | As per the Revised Salary letter
performance linked incentives along
with the performance criteria:
(iii) | Service contracts, notice period, | NA
severance fees and
(iv) | Stock option details, if any and | NA

whether the same has been issued at
a discount as well as the period over
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which accrued and over which
excisable.

Information pursuant to 1.2.5 of the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) regarding
Managing Director seeking appointment/ re-appointment/ revision in remuneration of Mr. Sumit
Gupta.

Age 44 years
Qualification CIMA, CS, COST ACCOUNTANT
Experience 23 years

Terms and Conditions of
Appointment or re-
appointment

Last Drawn Remuneration Rs. 1,56,00,000 Per annum
Date of First Appointmenton | 16™ May 2017

Board

No. of share held in Company | Nil

Relationship with the Managing Director
Company

No. of Board Meeting 2

attended during this Financial
Year (till date)

Other directorship in Indian 1 )DIVANTAGE ECOM PRIVATE LIMITED
companies/LLP

Except Mr. Sumit Gupta, Managing Director of the Company, none of the directors are financially
interested in the resolution.

Since the resolution under consideration for the approval of the members of the company does not

relates to or affect any other company in terms of provisions of section 102(2) of the act, there is no

requirement of stating the extent of shareholding interest of every promoter, director, manager and
other Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

For & on behalf of

M/s. Indiannica Learning Private Limited

g

Ms. Meera Sawhney
Company Secretary
Mem No.A48522
Date: 29/08/2020
Place: New Delhi
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To
The Members,

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their Report and Statement of Accounts for the financial year

ended 3151 March, 2020,

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The Company’s financial pertormance tor the year under review along with previous vear’s figures are given

hereunder:
Amount (in ‘lakhs’)
Particulars For year ended 31" | For Year ended 31°
iviarch, 2020 March, 2019
Revenue from operations 5,497 6,473
Other income 15 22
| Total Income 5,512 6,495
Expenses 7,346 9,435
(Loss) before exceptional items & tax (1,834) (2,941)
Exceptional items - -
(Luss) before Tax (1,834) (2,941)
Tax charge / (credit) (22) (76)
_(L_o_ss) after tax betore Other Comprehensive Income (1,812) (2,865)
T—otal Comprehensive (loss) for the year (1,799) (2,863)

DIVIDEND

The Company has not declared any dividend for the year under review and accordingly the company is not

required to transfer any amount to General Reserve,

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As stipulated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, Directors subscribe to the “Directors’

Responsibility Statement” and confirm that:

(a) in preparation of Annual Accounts for the year ended 31" March, 2020, the applicable Accounting

Standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures:

(b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year on March 31, 2020 and its loss for that period ended on March 31,

2020;

it



(c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d} the Directors have prepared the annual accounts of the Company on a going concern basis;

(e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

IMIEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the financial year ended 31* March 2020, 11(eleven) Meetings of the Board of Directors of the
company were held on 30.04.2019, 29.05.2019, 06.06.2019, 01.08.2019, 09.09.2019 26.09.20219,
11.11.2019, 03.12.2019,13.12.2019,29.01.2020,18.03.2020.

S.no Name of the Director ' No. of Board No. of Meetings
Meeting held attended
1 Mr. Anil Dungarshi Gala 11 8
2 Mr. Sumit Gupta 11 10
3 Mr. Sanjeev Jitendra Gala 11 3
4 Mr. Kalpesh Harakhchand Gala 11 1
5 Mr. Tushar Kumudraj Jani 11 2
6 Mr. Chandravir Saran Das 11 8
7 Pr. Yashn V verma 11 10
8 Mr. Natrajan Vishwanathan lyer 11 2

DETAILS OF DIRECTOR OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL APPOINTED/REAPPOINTED OR RESIGNED
DURING THE YEAR

DIN No. /PAN Name of Designation Date of Date of
No. Director/KMP Appointment Cessation
/Re-appointment
Natrajan V lyer Director - 01/10/2019
AFZPB7178Q Pratik Bhasker CFO 5 20/082019
Deepak Lalit Kaku CFO 21/082019

AGEPK8497KZ

ANNUAL RETURN
The extract of Annual Return of the Company in Form MGT-9 forms part of the Board’s Report and is annexed
herewith as Annexure-1 and will be available on company website hitps:/www.indiannicalearning. com




DEPOSITS
The Company has neilhier accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review,

LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMIENTS
No loans, guarantees or investments made under Section 186 by the company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company that
occurred during the end of the financial year to which this financial statements relate and the dale of this

report.
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMIPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary or joint venture or associate company. The Company is a
subsidiary Company of Navneet Education Limited.

RISK MIANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment and prioritization of risks followed by
coordinated efforts to minimize, monitor and mitigate/control the probability and/or impact of unfortunate
events or to maximize the realization of opportunities. The company has laid down a comprehensive Risk
Assessment and minimization procedure which is reviewed by the Board from time to time. These
procedures arc reviewed to ensure that executive manageimenl contiols risk through means of a properly
dulied Tameworle The najor rlsks Hava basn denlilied by e Company and s mldgatlon
process/mcasures have been formulated in the areas such as business, project execution, event, financial,

hurman environment and statutory compliance.

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, During
the year under review, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or

operation was observed.
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Trademark application filed under The Trade Marks Act, 1999 conferring the exclusive rights to use the
trademark in relation to Company logo has been accepted and registered under classes 9, 41 and 16,
application filed for wordmark under class 16 has been registered, further the same has been accepted and
advertised under classes 9 and 41 and will soon proceed for registration.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY [CSR]
The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 as relate to Corporate Social Responsibility do not

apply to the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
As per the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has constituted an audit

committee which functions as per the provisions of the Act.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
As per the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, Company has constituted a Nomination
and Remuneration Committee which functions as per the provisions of the Act.

. oprE—



RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
There was no contract or arrangements made with related parties as defined under Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review which was not at arm’s fength or not in the ordinary

course of business.

AUDITOR AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Auditors, M/s N.A Shah Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants were appointed as statutory Auditors of
the Company to hold office from the conclusion of the 19 Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of
the 24" Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2022 (subject to ratification of their appointment by
the Members at every AGM held after the 19" AGM) and being eligible offer themselves for reappointment
of the Company, which is subject to shareholders approval.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the Auditors in their Report. The observations of the
Statutory Auditors in their Report on the financial statement for the year ended on 31* March, 2020 are
self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further comments.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Auditors, M/s Vinay Angane & Associates, Company Secretaries were appointed as Secretarial Auditors
of the Company for the FY ended on 31° March 2020 vide resolution of the Board of Directors passed in a
duly convened meeting held on 18™ March, 2020.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the Auditors in their Report. The observations of the
Secretarial Auditors in their Report on the Secretarial Compliances for the year ended on 31 March, 2020
are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further comments.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All the Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the Board that they fulfill all the
requirements as stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 so as to qualify themselves to be
appointed as Independent Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
The Company has no employee in the category of employees specified under Rule 5 (2) of the Companies
{(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

SHARES
There was no change in the Share Capital of the Company by way buy back of shares, bonus issue of shares
or any Stock Option Scheme to the employees during the year under review.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMIENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has set up a system in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the
workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013, to redress complaints received and disposed off

during the financial year.

During the year under review, no complaint has been received by the Company.

Ty



CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
As the Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activities the provisions af Section 134(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors place on record their deep appreciation to employees at all levels for their hard work,
dedication and cunnnitinent. The enthuslasm and unstinting ettorts ot the employees have enabled the
company to remain as industry leaders.

The Board places on record its appreciation for the support and co-operation your company has heen
receiving fram its husiness partners and others associated with tho company, It will be the rampany’s
endeavor to build and nurture strong links based on mutuality of henefits, respect for and co-operation with
each other, consistent with client interests. The Directors also take this opportunity to thank all investors,
clients, Banks, Government and regulatory authorities for their continued support.

By order of the Board

For M/s Indiannica Learning private limited

Aol tala @Wﬂ

Anil Dungarshi Gala Sumit Gupta
Chairman & Director Managing Director
Date . 12" June, 2020 DIN:UULY2Y52 DIN:00039596

PNiace: New Delhi



Annexure-1

Form

EXTRACT

No. MGT-9

OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2020
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

-

Agent, if any

1. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:
| CIN U22110DL1998PTC094399
] Registration Date 10/06/1998
ili Name of the Company INDIANNICA LEARNING PRIVATE LIMITED
Iy Category/Sub-category of the
Company Llrnlteed by shurss
v Address ot the Registered oftice and | A-41, Ground Floor (L2), Mohan Co-Operative
contact details Industrial Cstate, Main Mathura Ruad, New Delhi
-110044
t-mail : accounts@ebindia com
Tel: 011-47154112
vi Whether Listed Company No
Vil Name, Address and Contact details of | NA
Registrar and Transfer

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be

stated:-
NIC Code of
Sk Name and Description of main the % to total turnover of the
No. | products / services Product/ Company
Service
1 Publishing, printing, and reproduction of| 581 100%
recorded media

t.

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES




Holding % of .
Sl Name and Address o Applicable
CIN/GLN /Subsidiary/ | Shares )
No. of the Company . Section
Associate held
1 Navneet Education . )
Lo L22200MH1984PLC034055 Holding 100 2(46)
Limited
. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as % of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise Share Holding
tegory of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the No. of Shares held at the end of the year %
hareholders year Change
during
Demat lPhysical Total %of Totall Demat | Physical Total % of Totall the
hare Shares year
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF
15 0 15 0.01 15 0 15 0.01 -
L) Centrat
Govt. or 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -
State Govt.
c)Bodies Cor
49351048 0 49351048 99.99 49351048 49351048 99.¢9 -
d) Bank /FI D “ y = m - = -
e) Any Other - N . . . z 3 = %
SUB TOTAL: (A) (1)
49351063 0 49351063 100 49351063 49351063 100 =

(2) Foreign
a3)NRIs  Individuals
b)Other  Individuals

c)Bodies Corporate

d) Banks /Fl

e} Any Other

Sub-Total

(A) (2):-




total Shareholding of
Promoter (A) =

(A)(1)+ (A)(2)

49351063 -

49351063

100

49351063

100

(ii} Shareholding of Pramnters{Fanity Share Mapital)

Sl 96
Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year
No change
in share
%of Shares .
%of Shares % of total holding
% of total Pledged / i
Pledged / Shares of during
No. of Shares [Shares of the No. of Shares encumbe red
encumbered the the
compuony to total .
to total shares company yedr
shares
Ly Navneat Education Limited 4,93,51,063 199 E 493,551,063 100 - -
Total 4,93,51,063 100 4,93,51,063 100 - -
(iii} Chiange In Promoters’ Shareholding {(Cyuily Shaire Capltal, please specify, it there is no change)
S,
N Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative shareholding during the year
0.
% of Total Shares of % of total shares of the
No. of shares No. of Shares
the Company Company
1. At the beginning of the year = - - =
3 At the end of the year = - - -
*  There was no change during the Year
(ivi  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders(Equity Share Capital) (other than Directors,
Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
Sl Shareholding at the Cumulative S hareholding during the year
No.

beginning of the year

For Each of the Top 10
Shareholders

No. of

Shares

% of Total Shares

of the Company

No. of Shares

% of Total Shares of the

Company
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(v} Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel(Equity Share Capital)

|SI, No.

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

| Shareholding at the beginning of the year
‘ For Each of the No. of Shares % of Total Shares No. of Shares % of Total Shares of the
Directors and of the Company Company
Kvip
‘ 1. |Atthe beginning of the -- - — =

year

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Share
holding during the year
sperifying the redsens

fur lncrease

/decrease
rc.g. allotient / tansior

/ bonus/ sweat

At the End of the year

\'A

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Preference Share Capital Breakup as

i} Category-wise Share Holding

7% of Total Preference Capital)

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the No. of Shares held at the end of the year %
Shareholders year Change
during
Demat Physical [Total of Totall Demat | Physical Total @ of Total (he
Share Shares year
A. Promoters
(1) tndian
a) Individual/ HUF
0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Central
Govt. or 0 0 0 0 0 0 .
State Govt.
c)Bodies Cor
0 0 0 45000000 43000000 100 -
L




d) Bank /FI

e) Any Other

SUB TOTAL: (A) (1)

49000000

49000000

100

(2) Foreign

alNRIs Individuals

D)Other  Individuals

r)Rndies Carparate

d) Banks /FI

e} Any Other

Sub-Total
(A) (2):-

Total Shareholding of
Promoter (A) =

(A)1)+ (A)(2)

44000000 g

19000000

100

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters (Preference Share Capital)

Sl %
Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year
No. change
- in shar_el
%of Shares .
%of Shares % of total holding
% of total Pledged / .
Pledged / Shares of during
No. of Shares |Shares of the No. of Shares encumhbe red
encumbered the the
company to total
to total shares company year
shares
¥ Navneet Education Limited = B 4,90,00,000 100 : -
Total - - 4,90,00,000 100 -




(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding(Preference Share Capital) (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl
N Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative s hareholding during the year
0.
% of Total Shares of % of total shares of the
No. of shares No. of Shares
the Company Company
1. At the beginning of the year = — = ==
3. At the end of the year — - - -
=  There was no change during the Year
(iv)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders ( Preference Share Capital ){other than Directors,
Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
Sk Shareholding at the Cumulative S hareholding during the year
No. beginning of the year

[ For Each of the Top 10 Ne. of % nf Tatal Sharas Mo. of Shares 3 of Total Shares ul Ue

| Shareholders Shares of the Lompany Company

{

| L : :

l !

*
(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel(Preference Share Capital)
|Sl. No. Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year T
For Each of the No. of Shares % of Total Shares No. of Shares % of Total Shares of the
Directors and of the Company Company
Kmvip

1. |At the beginning of the == == N

year

2. Date wise Increase / = — -
Decrease in Share
holding during the year
specifying the reasons
for increase
/ decrease
[e.g. allotment / transfer|

/ bonus/ sweat




3. | At the End of the year -

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

{Amount in ‘lakh’s)

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Deposits Loans Indebtedness
Indebtediess al the beglunlng uf the
financial year
1} Principal Amount 2717 2.900
ii)interest due but not paid iii)lnterest accrued
but not due
Total (i+ii+iii) 2,717 2,900 5,617
Change in Indebtedness during the financial
year- Addition 3,000 1,100
Reduction (2,717) (3,500)
Net Change 288 2800 3,088
Indebtedness  attheend of the
lInanclal year
i) Principal Amount
3,000 100
i) Interest duc bul nat patd
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii) 3,000 100 3,100
(7]
VL REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A.  Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manage (In Rs):

SI Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Total
N Manager Amount
Sumit Gupta
(Managing
Director




1, Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 1,30,91,489 1,30,91,489
17(1) of the Income-tax Act,
1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 39,500 39,600
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Incomef
tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option
3. Sweat Equity
4, Commission
- as % of profit =
- others, specify...
5, Others, please specify -
Total (A) 1,31,31,089 1,31,31,089
Ceiling as per the Act (After passing the special
. 1,68,00,000
Resolution)
o Remunerarinn m athar Dicectnes (in )
51, Particulars ol Remuneration Name ot Directors Total
No., Amount
Mr. Mr. Or. Yasho
Tushar | Chandravir Verdhan
Jani S Das Verma
1. Independent Directors
- Fee for attending board/ 70,800 2,36,000
committee meetings
- Commission
- Others, please specify
Total (1) 70,800 | 2,36,000 3,06,800
2, Other Non-Executive
Directors
' Fee for attending board/ 3,06,800
- = 3,06,800
committee meetings
- Commission
- Others, please specify
Total (2) - - -
Total (B)=(1+2) 70,800 | 2,36,000 3,06,800 6,13,600
Total Managerial
Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as
per the Act.

o



€. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

Amount In Rs,

Sl Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel
no. Remuneration
(Chief Financial (Company (CEO) Total
Officer) Secretary)
Pratik Bhasker
20 Aug Meera
2019) Sawhney
1, Gross salary
{n) Snlary a3 par previsivns
contained In section 17(1) of the 16,19,507 4,34.086
Incarme-tax Act, 1961
(b} Value of perguisiies u/s 6,600 .
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 L
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under =
sectinn.'17:(3}
2. Stock Option = - - -
3. Sweat Equity - E = -
- Commission
- ds % of profit X = - -
- others, specify... -
S, Others, please specify . - o =
Total 16,26,107 4,34,086 - 20,60,193.20
VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Section of the Brief Description Details of Penalty/ Authority (RD/ Appeal made if
Type Companies Act Punishment/ NCLT/ Court) any (give
Compounding fees details)
imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment NIL
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment NiL
Compounding




C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT (COMPANY SECRETARY)

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

NIL

Date : 12* June, 2020
Place: New Delhi

By order of the Board

For M/s Indiannica Learning private limited

Aodntda Q:T{LL}&

Anil Dungarshi Gala Sumit Gupta
Chairman & Director Managing Director
DIN:00092952 DIN:00039596




Indiannica Learning Private Limited

Ind AS Financial Statements for the
year ended 31st March 2020




DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To
The Members,

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their Report and Statement of Accounts for the financial year
ended 31sl March, 2020,

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
The Company’s financial pertormance tor the year under review along with previous vear’s figures are given

hereunder:
Amount (in ‘lakhs’)
baﬁculars For year ended 31" | For Year ended 31%
March, 2020 March, 2019
Revenue from operations 5,497 6,473
Other income 15 22
“Yotal Income 5,512 6,495
Expenses 7,346 9,435
(Loss) before exceptional items & tax {(1,834) (2,941-)_
_Exceptional items - - -
(Luss) before Tax (1,834) (2,941)
Tax charge / (credit) {22) (76)
7[055) after tax before Other Comprehensive Income (1,812) (2,865)
T—otal Comprehensive (loss) for the year (1,799) {2,863)

DiVIDERND
The Company has not declared any dividend for the year under review and accordingly the company is not
required to transfer any amount to General Reserve.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As stipulated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, Directors subscribe to the “Directors’
Responsibility Statement” and confirm that:

(a) in preparation of Annual Accounts for the year ended 31* March, 2020, the applicable Accounting
Standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year on March 31, 2020 and its loss for that period ended on March 31,
2020;



(c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts of the Company on a going concern basis;

(e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the financial year ended 31% March 2020, 11(eleven) Meetings of the Board of Directors of the
company were held on 30.04.2019, 29.05.2019, 06.06.2019, 01.08.2019, 09.09.2019, 26.09.20219,
11.11.2019, 03.12.2019,13.12.2019,29.01.2020,18.03.2020.

S.no Name of the Director No. of Board No. of Meetings
Meeting held attended

_1 Mr. Anil Dungarshi Gala 11 8

2 Mr. Sumit Gupta 11 10

3 Mr. Sanjeev Jitendra Gala 11 3

4 Mr. Kalpesh Harakhchand Gala 11

5 Mr. Tushar Kumudrai Jani 11

6 Mr. Chandravir Saran Das 11

7 Dr. Yasha V verma 1 10

8 Mr. Natrajan Vishwanathan lyer 11 2

DETAILS OF DIRECTOR OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL APPOINTED/REAPPOINTED OR RESIGNED
DURING THE YEAR

DIN No. /PAN Name of Designation Date of Date of
No. Director/KIViP Appointment Cessation
/Re-appointment
Natrajan V lyer Director - 01/10/2019
AFZPB7178Q Pratik Bhasker CFO . 20/08/2019
Deepak Lalit Kaku CFO 21082019
AGEPK8497KZ

ANNUAL RETURN
The extract of Annual Return of the Company in Form MGT-9 forms part of the Board’s Report and is annexed
herewith as Annexure-1 and will be available on company website hitps://www.indiannicalearning.com




DEPOSITS
The Company has neilher accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review.

LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTIVIENTS
No loans, guarantees or investments made under Section 186 by the company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial pasition of the Company that
occurred during the end of the financial ycar to which this financial statements relate and the dale of this

report.
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary or joint venture or associate company. The Company is a

subsidiary Company of Navneet Education Limited.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment and prioritization of risks followed by
coordinated efforts to minimize, monitor and mitigate/control the probability and/or impact of unfortunate
events or to maximize the realization of opportunities. The company has laid down a comprehensive Risk
Assessment and minimization procedure which is reviewed by the Board from time to time. These
procedures arc reviewed to ensure that executive managerment contiols risk through means of a properly
dufined frnuworle The mjur ke have basn denlibied by Uie Cotmpany and s mldgatlon
process/mcasures have been formulated in the areas such as business, project execution, event, financial,
human environment and statutory compliance.

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During
the year under review, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or

operation was observed.
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Trademark application filed under The Trade Marks Act, 1999 conferring the exclusive rights to use the
trademark in relation to Company logo has been accepted and registered under classes 9, 41 and 16,
application filed for wordmark under class 16 has been registered, further the same has been accepted and
advertised under classes 9 and 41 and will soon proceed for registration.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY [CSR]
The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 as relate to Corporate Social Responsibility do not

apply to the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
As per the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has constituted an audit
committee which functions as per the provisions of the Act.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
As per the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, Company has constituted a Nomination
and Remuneration Committee which functions as per the provisions of the Act.



RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
There was no contract or arrangements made with related parties as defined under Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review which was not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary

course of business.

AUDITOR AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Auditors, M/s N.A Shah Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants were appointed as statutory Auditors of
the Company to hold office from the conclusion of the 19t Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of
the 24™ Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2022 (subject to ratification of their appointment by
the Members at every AGM held after the 19" AGM) and being eligible offer themselves for reappointment
of the Company, which is subject to shareholders approval.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the Auditors in their Report. The observations of the
Statutory Auditors in their Report on the financial statement for the year ended on 31° March, 2020 are
self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further comments.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Auditors, M/s Vinay Angane & Associates, Company Secretaries were appointed as Secretarial Auditors
of the Company for the FY ended on 31% March 2020 vide resolution of the Board of Directors passed in a
duly convened meeting held on 18" March, 2020.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the Auditors in their Report. The observations of the
Secretarial Auditors in their Report on the Secretarial Compliances for the year ended on 31% March, 2020
are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further comments.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All the Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the Board that they fulfill all the
requirements as stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 so as to qualify themselves to be
appointed as Independent Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
The Company has no employee in the category of employees specified under Rule 5 (2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

SHARES
There was no change in the Share Capital of the Company by way buy back of shares, bonus issue of shares
or any Stock Option Scheme to the employees during the year under review.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMEENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has set up a system in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the
workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013, to redress complaints received and disposed off
during the financial year.

During the year under review, no complaint has been received by the Company.



CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
As the Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activities the provisions of Section 134(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors place on record their deep appreciation to employees at all levels for their hard work,
dedication and cunmitinenl. The enthuslasm and unstinting ettorts ot the employees have enabled the
company to remain as industry leaders.

The Board places on record its appreciation for the support and co-operation your company has heen
receiving fram its husiness partners and others associated with the company. It will be ths campany’s
endeavor to build and nurture strong links based on mutuality of henefits, respect for and co-operation with
each other, consistent with client interests. The Directors aiso take this opportunity to thank all investors,
clients, Banks, Government and regulatory authorities for their continued support.

By order of the Board
For M/s Indiannica Learning private limited

Anil Dungarshi Gala Sumit Gupta
Chairman & Director Vlanaging Director
Date . 12" June, 2020 DIN:UUUY2Y52 DIN:00039596

Place: New Delhi



Annexure-1

Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT

OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2020
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

1. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

U22110DL1998PTC094399

Registration Date

10/06/1998

Name of the Company

INDIANNICA LEARNING PRIVATE LIMITED

Registrar and Transfer
Agent, if any

Iv Category/Sub-category of the
Company Lirmltedd by sharag
v Address of the Registered oftice and | A-41, Ground Floor (L2), Mohan Co-Operative
contact details Industrial LCstate, Main Mathura Road, New Delhi
-110044
E-mail : accounts@ehindia.com
Tel: 011-47154112
Vi Whether Listed Company No
vii Name, Address and Contact details of | NA

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be

stated:-
| NIC Code of
Sk Name and Description of main the % to total turnover of the
No. | products / services Product/ Company
Service
|1 Publishing, printing, and reproduction of 581 - iOO%
recorded media

tH.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES




Holding % of ]
Sl Name and Address L Applicable
CIN/GLN /Subsidiary/ | Shares .
No. of the Company . Section
Associate held
1 Navneet Education .
L L22200MH1984PLC034055 Holding 100 2(46)
Limited
YA SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as % of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

‘Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the No. of Shares held at the end of the year %
Shareholders year Change
during
Demat Physical [Total 7%of Totall Demat | Physical Total %o of Total the
Share Shares year
A. Promoters
(1) indian
a) Individual/ HUF
15 0 15 0.01 15 0 15 0.01 -
b} Central
Govt. or 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -
State Govt.
c)Bodies Cor
49351048 0 49351048 99.99 |49351048 49351048 99.29 -
d) Bank /FI 2 - i . - ? 3 5
e) Any Other = = . , . - - 2 s
SUB TOTAL: (A) (1)
49351063 0 49351063 100 49351063 49351063 100 -
(2) Foreign
a)NRIs  Individuals
b)Other  Individuals

c)Bodies Corporate

d) Banks /FI

e) Any Other

Sub-Total

(A) (2):--




‘ Total Shareholding of

l Promoter (A} =

(A)(1)+ (A)(2)

49351063

45351063

100 49351063

100

{ii} Shareholdi

ng of Pramnters(FAuity Share Capital)

Si. ‘ %
’ Sharehoider’s Name Shareholding at e beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year
No. change
}7 in ahare
‘ %of Sharcs .
%of Shares % of total holding
% of total Pledged / .
‘ Pledged / Shares of during
| No. of Shares [Shares of the No. of Shares encumbe red
| encumbered the the
‘ company to total
to total shares company year
‘ shares
]
‘ L Navneet Education Limited +,93,51,003 e ) 4,93,51,0863 100 ) .
|
Total 4,93,51,063 100 - 4,93,51,063 100 - -
| r
{iii) Chiangu In Promoters’ shareholding {Cyuily Share Capltal, please specify, it there is no change)
st |
N Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative shareholding during the year
o.
‘ % of Total Shares of % of total shares of the
| No. of shares No. of Shares
the Company Company
1. At the beginning of the year - - - -
3 At the end of the year - -- - -~

(iv)

There was no change during the Year

Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders(Equity Share Capital} {other than Directors,

Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Cumulative S hareho

Iding during the year

For Each of the Top 10

Shareholders

No. of

Shares

% of Total Shares No. of Shares

of the Company |

% of Total Shares of the

Company




X

(v} Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel(Equity Share Capital)

islsl. No.nI Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year
|
_i For Each of the No. of Shares % of Total Shares No. of Shares % of Total Shares of the
i Directors and of the Company Company
[ Kvip
| 1 |At the beginning of the - - - -
Jl year
| 2. Date wise Increase / - - - -
J Decrease in Share
| holding during the year
| i specifying the rvasons
| [
i 1 lut Ihcrease
|
! |‘ / decrease
:[ fle.g. allolinent / transfoer
‘ | /bonus/ sweat
‘I 3 | At the End of the year - - - -
V. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Preference Share Capital Breakup as % of Total Preference Capital)
i) Category-wise Share Holding
Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the No. of Shares held at the end of the year %
Shareholders year Change
during
Demat Physical [Total 6of Total Demat | Physical | Total LM’. of Total the
Share Shares year
A. Promoters
(1) indian
a) Individual/ HUF
0 0 0 0 0 0 -
b) Central
Govt. or 0 0 0 0 0 0 -
State Govt.
¢)Bodies Cor
0 0 0 45000000 49000000 100 -
1




d) Bank /FI

e} Any Other

SUB TOTAL: (A) (1)

0 49000000

49000000

100

(2) Foreign

a)NRIs  Individuals

b)Other  Individuals

r)Rndies Cnrparate

d) Banks /FI

e) Any Other

Total Shareholding of

Sub-Total
(A) (2):-

Promoter {A) =
(AN1)+ (A)2)

- 49000

000 =

49000000

100

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters (Preference Share Capital)

[ B |
sk %
Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year B
No change
= in share
%of Shares 5
%of Shares % of total holding
% of total Pledged / )
Pledged / Shares of during
No. of Shares |Shares of the No. of Shares encumhbe red
encumbered the the
company to total
to total shares company year
shares
e
2 Navneet Education Limited ) ) } SRIERNe0 20 : i
Total - - - 4,50,00,000 100 -




(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding(Preference Share Capital) {please specify, if there is no change)

Decrease in Share
holding during the year
specifying the reasons

for increase
/ decrease
(e.g. allotment / transfer]

/ bonus/ sweat

~ Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative shareholding during the year
o.
% of Total Shares of % of total shares of the|
| No. of shares No. of Shares
‘ the Company Company
i, At the beginning of the year - a3 = n
‘ 3. At the end of the year - - - "=
®  There was no change during the Year
(iv)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders { Preference Share Capital }(other than Directors,
Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

[ Sk Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during the year

[ No. beginning of the year

[ For Each of the Top 10 Na. of % of Tntal Sharag Mo. of Sharos 9 of Total Shares ul the

| Shareholder s Sharey of thé Lompany Company

—

" : :

i |

X
(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel({Preference Share Capital)

isl. No. Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year —|

For Each of the No. of Shares % of Total Shares No. of Shares % of Total Shares of the

. Directors and of the Company Company

: KmPp

| 1. |At the beginning of the == - -

| year

2. Date wise Increase / " - | -




‘ 3. | At the End of the year -

|

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

(Amount in ‘lakh’s)

‘ Secured Loans Unsecured ‘ Deposits Total
|
[ excluding Depousits Loans | Indebtedness
I | -
{ |
‘ Indebteduess al Lhe beglinlny of the ‘
. financial year |
i} Principal Amount 2,717 2,900
‘ ii)interest due but not paid iii)Interest accrued
but not due
| Total (i+ii+iii) 2,717 2,900 ' 5,617
Change in Indebtedness during the financial
year- Addition 3,000 1,100
Reduction (2,717) (3,900) |
Net Change 288 2800 3,088
| Indebtedness  at theend of the
financlal year
i) Principal Amount
3,000 100
ii} Interest dug bul nat pald
iii} Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii) 3,000 100 3,100
6
V8L REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A.  Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manage (In Rs):
Sl Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Total
N.. Manager Amount
Sumit Gupta
{Managing

Director




Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section

17(1) of the Income-tax Act,

1961

{b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act,1961

{c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income

tax Act, 1961

1,30,91,489

39,600

1,30,91,489

39,600

2. Stock Option i
3. Sweat Equity )
4, Commission
- as % of profit =
- others, specify...
5. Others, please specify -
Total (A) 1,31,31,089 1,31,31,089
Ceiling as per the Act (After passing the special
Resolution) 1,68,00,000
B Bemuneratinn tn arher Rireetars (in ie):
sl Particulars ol Remuneration Name ot Olrectors Total
No.. Amount
Mr. Mr. Dr. Yasho
Tushar | Chandravir| Verdhan
Jani S Das Verma
il Independent Directors
- Fee for attending board/ 70,800 2,36,000
committee meetings
+ Commission
- Others, please specify
Tesalifr) 70,800 | 2,36,000 3,06,800
2, Other Non-Executive
Directors
- Fee for attending board/ 3,06,800
- - 3,06,800
committee meetings
- Commission
- Others, please specify
Total (2) - - N o -
Total (B)=(1+2) 70,800 | 2,36,000 3,06,800 6,13,600
Total Managerial
Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as
per the Act.




C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel} other than MD/Manager/WTD

Amount In Rs.

Sl Particulars of

no. Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

Officer)

Pratik Bhasker
(till 20tk
2019)

{Chief Financial

Aug

{Company

Secretary)

Meera

Sawhney

il Gross salary

(n) Snlary a3 per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the 16,19,507

Income-tax Act, 1961
(b} Value of perquisites u/s 6,600
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under

section 17(3)

4,34,086

(CEO)

Total

2. Stock Option -

3. Sweat Equity -

- Commission
- as % of profit -
| -others, specify... )
5, Others, please specify =

Total 16,26,107

4,34,086

20,60,193.20

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMIENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Section of the Brief Description Details of Penalty/ Authority (RD/ Appeal made if
Type Companies Act Punishment/ NCLT/ Court) any (give
Compounding fees details)
imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment NIL
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment NiL
Compounding




C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT (COMPANY SECRETARY)

Penalty

Punishment NIL

Compounding

By order of the Board
For M/s Indiannica Learning private limited

TRIYWP Sl

Anil Dungarshi Gala Sumit Gupta
Chairman & Director Managing Director
Date : 12" June, 2020 DIN:00092952 DIN:00039596

Place: New Delhi




N. A. SHAH ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

ORIGINAL]

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF INDIANNICA LEARNING PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Indiannica Learning Private
Limited (‘the Company’) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2020, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of changes in Equity and the
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (together referred to as ‘Ind AS financial statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31t March 2020, and its loss including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are
Independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of lndia ('Uie ICAI') luyelher with he ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit ot the Ind AS tinancial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical respunsibililies in accurdance wilh lhese reguiretments and he
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit cvidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for cur opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Principal Audit Procedures

Key Audit Matter

Accuracy of useful life and impairment test
of brand license grouped under intangible
assets

As part of our audit procedures, we have
performed following:

We refer to note 2.1(b) of significant accounting | ¢ Reviewed the useful life / balance useful life
policies for impairment of brand license and note and discussed the same with management as
4 of the Ind AS financial statements for carrying regards the expectation of future economic
amount of the same. benefits

As per ‘right-to-use brand’ agreement entered
into with Encyclopedia Britannica Inc. in the
financial year 2016-17, the Company had
capitalized amount paid aggregating to Rs. 35
crores; written down value of which is Rs. 19.32
crores as at year end 315t March 2020.

Amortization of cost incurred and impairment

test for carrying amount includes:

+ Estimation of useful life based on expected
future economic benefits from the usage of
brand; and

o Evaluated relevant assumptions used in the
impairment testing of the brand license,
focusing on the reasonableness of the
forecasted economic information (for next
four years) and the estimation and allocation
of the revenue and costs related brand. As
per the projections the expected profit is
significantly higher than the carrying value.

» Reviewed the accuracy of the management’s
earlier estimates and understood the reason
for variances.

N. A. Shah Assaciates LLP is registered with limited liability having LLP identification No. AAG-7S09
Regd. Off.: B 41-45, Paragon Centre, Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai 400 013.
Tel.: 91-22-40733000 @ Fax: 91-22-40733030 ® E-mail : inffo@nashah.com
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* Management estimates & judgement in
regards to future market response and
expected profitability.

Accuracy of management estimates for | Principal Audil Procedures
provision for sales return
As part of our audit procedures, we have
We reter to note 2 1(m) of aignificant acraunting | parfarmed fallowirg:

policies for accounting of provisions and note 18 | ¢  Evaluated the design and effectiveness of

of the Ind AS financial statements for carrying internal control over capturing details of sales
amount and movement of provisions. return in arcannting system;

Pravision for expected sales return is made | ¢ Reviewed supporting for sales return on
based on review of past trend of actual sales sample basis and understood reason for the
returns. This involves: same;

e Estimation of expected sales return as
compared to trend available for actual sales | o  Verified accuracy of amounts of earlier year's
return based on market conditions, review of captured in working for making expected
special terms / guarantee offered to sales return provision;
customers and other factors; and

o Evaluated of the relevant assumptions made,

« Judgement of future market response for judgement used and reasonable of the same;
new products launched during the year and

¢ Reviewed lthe accuracy ul lhe managemenl's
earlier estimatas

Other Matter

Due to Covid-19 and consequent lockdown, the management was unable to carry out physical
verification of inventories and tangible fixed assets as at 315t March 2020. We have relied upon the
internal control system to validate the existence & condition of inventories and tangible fixed assets as
on 318t March 2020.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.
Information Other than the Ind AS financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
obtained at the date of this auditor's report is Director's report, but does not include the Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations. or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
MIULESS.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

e crgctant i Qe b abbenne reasonalble woouranoe aluwal whelher e Tod AR Timuneiad stulements as u
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As a part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the resuits of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Fram tha mattore communiantad with thann nharged with gnvernonne, we detormine thone mnttera
that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
‘Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act; read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 315t March 20

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on g&““ M—‘-\ 2

March 2020, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;
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f With respect to adequacy of internal financial controls syslem over financial reporting of the
Company and operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report given in
“Annexure B”; Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting;

g. With regpect to the vlhier multers o be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneralion paid / provided by
the Company to its directors for the year ended 31st March 2020 is in accordance with the
pruvisiuts ul seclivin 19T tead with Schedule V of the Act: and

h.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Ind AS financial statements. Refer Note 34 to the Ind AS financial statements:

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses:

iii. There are no amounts which were required to be transferred o e Investlur Educalion and
Pratection Fund by the Company.

For N.A Shah Associates LLP
Chailered Accounlanls
Firm Registration No. 116560W / W100149

L)t

Prashant Daftary*

Partner

Membership No. 117080
UDIN: 20117080AAAABM4486

e

Place: Mumbai
Date: 12t June 2020
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended 315t March 2020
[Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of
our report of even date]

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

In respect of fixed assets:

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

b. The Company has a plan to physicaliy verify all fixed assets once in a year. In our opinion, this
frequency of verification is reasonable having regards to the size of the Company and nature
of its assets. However, during the year on account of the mandatory lockdown due to Covid-19
pandemic, the said physical verification was not possible to be conducted. Considering the
same, we are unable to comment on the material discrepancies under (i) (b) of paragraph 3 of
the Order (Also see ‘Other Matter’ paragraph of this report).

c. According to the information and explanations given to us and on examination of the records,
we report that the Company does not own any immovable property, which is classified as fixed
assets. Therefore, clause (i) (c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has a plan to physically verify all inventories once in a year. In our opinion, this
frequency of verification is reasonable. However, during the year on account of the mandatory
lockdown due to Covid-19 pandemic, the said physical verification was not possible to be
conducted by the management. Considering the same, we are unable to comment on the
material discrepancies under (i} of paragraph 3 of the Order (Also see ‘Other Matter' paragraph
of this report).

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Therefore, requirements of
clause (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year the Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided
any guarantees or securities covered under section 185 and section 186 of the Act. Therefore,
question of ensuring compliance with section 185 and 186 of the Act does not arise.

In our opinion and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits which are covered under section 73 to 76. Therefore, question of reporting compliance
with directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder does not arise. We are informed
that no Order relating to the Company has been passed by the Company Law Board or National
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal.

The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 for any of the activities carried on by the Company. Therefore,
paragraph 3(vi} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and as per explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company in respect of amounts deducted / accrued in the
books of accounts, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, tax deduction at source, income tax,
sales tax, service tax, goods and service tax, value added tax, cess and any other material
statutory dues as applicable to the Company during the year with the appropriate authorities. As
at 318t March 2020, there are no such undisputable dues payable for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.




(viii)

(ix)

)

(xi)

(xii)

(xii)

(xiv)

(xv)
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Independent Auditor’s report (continued)

(b) According to the records of the Company and information and explanations given to us, there
are no dues in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, tax deduction at source,
income tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and service tax, value added tax, cess and any other
material statutory dues which have not been deposited with appropriate authorities on account of
any dispute, except the following disputed dues which have not been deposited since the matters

are pending with the relevant forum:
(Amount in Lakhs)

Name of statue Nature of dues | Amount Period to which | Forum where dispute
it relates is pending
The Income Tax Income tax & 69 F.Y. 2016-17 CIT (Appeals)
Act, 1961 Interest
The Income Tax Penalty 61 F.Y.2017-18 CIT (Appeals)
Act, 1961

(Also refer note 34 of the financial statement).

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a bank and financial institution. The
Company has not borrowed any monies from debenture holders or government.

During the year, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer inaluding debt inatrumenia and term loans Accordingly, the provisions of the clause
(ix) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books of account and records of the Company,
carricd out in accordance with generally accepted auditing praclives in lndia and accurding W the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any incidence of material
Naud by the Company or on the Company by Itas employcea / officers, nor have been informed ot
any such case by the management.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the
Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statement as required by the applicable Ind AS - Refer Note 37 to the Ind AS financial
statements.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
records, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him and hence compliance with Section 192 of the Act does not arise.
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(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934.

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 116560W / W100149

l 4’ @ p? ‘ (& ] \j
Prashant Daftary’ “*

Partner
Membership No. 117080
UDIN: 20117080AAAABM4486 S

‘X_P" e SUCIATE
*

Place: Mumbai
Date: 12t June 2020
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended 315t March 2020
[Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements”
of our report of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act’)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Indiannica Learning Private
Limited (“the Company”), as of 315t March 2020, in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31t March 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance
Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI').

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note, issued by ICAl. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of rellable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reparting basad an our audit We conducted aur nndit in annordnnne with the Cuidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAIl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number: 116560W / W100149

Prashant Daftary e
Partner

Membership number: 117080
UDIN: 20117080AAAABM4486
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Indiannica Learning Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020
CIN: U22110DL1998PTC094399

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Note As at 31st As at 31st
No., Mar 2020 Mar 2019
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 194 235
(b) Right of use Assets 4 668 =
(c) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) 5 1,951 2,431
(d) Intangible assets under development 6 - 12
(e) Financial Assets
(1) Security deposits 7 51 56
(f) Deferred tax assets (net) 8 207 189
(q) Assets for Non-current tax 24 67
Total non-current Assets 3,095 2,988
Current assets
(a) Inventories 9 1,537 2,318
(b) Financial Assets
(i} Trade receivables 10 5,852 6,634
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 176 232
(iii) Other bank balances 12 3 3
(c) Other current assets 13 124 143
Total current Assets 7,693 9,329
TOTAL ASSETS 10,788 12,318
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Eauity Share capital 14 4,935 4,935
(b) Other equity (913) (3,971)
Total equity 4,022 964
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 37 44
(ii) Lease liabilities 16 490 -
(b) Other non-current liabilities 17 12 21
(c) Provisions 18 2 6
Total non-current liabilities 542 71
Current liabilities
() Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 3,100 5,617
(ii) Lease liabilities 162 -
(i) lrade payables 20
- Armount due of micro and small enrernnses 153 6R3
- Amaunt dug of others RAl 1,409
(iv) Other financiat liabilities 21 101 177
(b) Other current liabilities 22 147 239
(c) Provisions 18 1,631 2,078
Total current liabilities 6,225 11,283
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 10,788 12,318

The accompanying accounting poticies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached hereto

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.

16560W / W1001

==

Partner
Membership Number: 117080

Place: MomMEAT

Date: 12 JUN 2020

For and on behalf of the board

of directors of

Indiannica Learning Private Limited
(Formerly known as Encyclopaedia Britannica

(India) Private Limited)

Director
DIN: 00092952\/_‘

b

epak Kaku
Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi

12 JuN

Sumit Gupta
Managing director
DIN: 00039596

W

Meera Sawhney
Company Secretary
Mem. No. A48522



Indiannica Learning Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2020
CIN: U22110DL1998PTC094399

(Amount in Lakhs)

Note | For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars No. 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Income
Revenue from operations 23 5,497 6,473
Other income 24 15 22
Total income 5,512 6,495
Expenses
Cost of materials & components consumed 25 1,747 3,468
Purchase of traded goods and services 15 41
Decrease/ (Increase) in inventories of finished goods 26 383 (823)
Employee benefits expense 27 2,084 2,632
Finance costs 28 419 418
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 721 557
Other expenses 30 1,977 3,143
Total expenses 7,346 9,435
(Loss) before tax (1,834) (2,941)
Tax expense: 31
Current tax - J
Deferred tax (22) (76)
(22) (76)
(Loss) for the year (1,811) (2,865)
Other comprehensive income (OCI):
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent year 17 2
Less: Income tax relating to the above (4) =
(b) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent year - -
Less: Income tax relating to the above =
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 13 2
Total comprehensive (loss) for the year (Total of loss and other
comprehensive income / (loss) for the year) (1,799) (@IS53)
Earnings per equity share of Rs, 10/- each
Basic and diluted (in INR) 32 (3.67) (5.81)

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached hereto

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reaistration No. 116560W / W1

7o)}

Prashant Daftany)
Partner ?
Membership Number: 117080

Place: MomMaa ¢

% 19 JUN 200

For and on behalf of the board of directors of

Indiannica Learning Private Limited

(Formerly known as Encyclopaedia
Britannica (India) Private Limited)

»

Anil D. Gala
Direclor

DIN: 0009295%/'

e

Deépak Kaky

hief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi

NP 12 JUN 100

Sumit Gupta
Manaqing director
DIN: 00039596

N

Meera Sawhney
Company Secretery
Mem. No. A48522




Indiannica Learning Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2020
CIN: U22110DL1998PTC094399

A Equity share capital

{Amount in Lakhs)

Changes in equity Changes in equity
share capital Balance at 31st share capital Balance as at 31
Balance as at 31st Marchi2018 during the year March 2019 during the year March 2020
2018-19 2019-20
4,935 - 4,935 - 4,935
B Other equity
(Amount in Lakhs)
. Other
Optlonzflly Reserves and surplus Comprehensive
Convertible loth
Particulars Preference Shares Lncome Loe (.)t i
Refer note (a) Securities - ] Remeasurement equity
below = Retained earnings on defined
premium N
benefit plan
As at March 31, 2018 - 2,106 (3,215) 1 (1,108)
(Loss) for the period - - (2,865) = (2,865)
Remeasurement on defined benefit plan - - = 2 2
As at March 31, 2019 - 2,106 (6,080) 3 (3,971)
{Loss) for the period - - (1,811) = (1,811)
Convertible Preference Shares 4,900 - = = 4,900
Expenses for increase in authorised capital - = (44) 2 (44)
Remeasurement on defined benefit plan - = 13 13
As at March 31, 2020 4,900 2,106 (7,936) 16 (913)
Notes:
a) The Company has issued 4,90,00,000 (Previous year: Nil) Optionally Convertible Preference Shares (OCPS) of Rs 10 each aggregating to Rs. 4,900

Lakhs on a right basis to holding company 'Navneet Education Limited' at face value. The OCPSs carries 0% coupon rate. The Company has an
option to convert OCPS into same number of Equity shares of the Company of Rs. 10 each (being face value of the shares) at any time after
allotment date but before end of 20 years. In case OCPS are not converted by the Company, they shall be redeemed at par in full not later than 20
years from the date of allotment. In the opinion of the management of the Company, the OCPS would be fully converted into equity and there is no
obligation to redecm the OCPS, considering the same, the OCPS have been classified as equity. Tabulated below allotment dates on which OCPSs

are issued during the year:

Particulars Date of allotment
3,90,00,000 OCPS of Rs. 10 each 09-Sep-19
25,00,000 OCPS of Rs. 10 each 26-Sep-19
20,00,000 OCPS of Rs. 10 each 03-Dec-19
10.00.000 OCPS of Rs. 10 each 13-Dec-19
30,00,000 OCPS of Rs. 10 each 29-Jan-20
15.00,000 OCPS of Rs. 10 each 18-Mar-20

(=3
-

Companies Act, 2013.

The accompanying accountina policies and explanatory notes form an inteqral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attacher] hereln

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accounlants

Firm Reaistration No. 116550W / W100149
/’?:--_ { AS

Prashant Daftary
Partner -
Membership Number: 11708

e

Place: piompgp

% 12 JUN 2010

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Indiannica Learning Private Limited
(Formerly known as Encyclopaedia Britannica (India) Private Limited)

J kel

Anil D. Gala
Director
DIIN: (iii,[ffi%y
Degnak Kaku

ief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi

Date: 12 JU“ zm

Securities premium is used 1o record the premium on issue af shares. The reserve is 1ililised in arrardance with the provigiong of saction 53 of the

oA

Sumit Gupta
Managing director
DIN: 00039596

Meera Sawhney
Company Sccretary
Mem. No. A48522




Indiannica Learning Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2020

CIN: U22110DL1998PTC094399

{Amount in lakhs)

. For the year ended | For the year ended
erticulars 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2016
A. [Cash flow from operating activities
(Loss)/Profit before tax (1,834) (2,941)
Adjustments to reconcile (loss)/ profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortisation expense 721 557
Finance income (0) )
Provision for doubtful debts 105 79
Provision for advances 41 15
Inventory written off / provision 399 304
Unrealised foreign exchange loss (net) 2) 72
Finance costs 419 417
Operating profit before changes in assets and liabilities (152) (1,497)
Working Capital adjustments:
(Increase) in trade receivables 696 (396)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories 382 (1,122)
Decrease(Increase) in other financial assets 4 (8)
Decrease/(Increase) in other non-financial assets 18 (1)
Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions (451) 693
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payable & other financial liabilities (2,206) 745
(Decrease)/ Increase in non-current financial liabilities > (5)
(Decrease)/ Increase in current non-financial liabilities (101) (21)
Cash (used in) operations (1,809) (1,644)
Income tax paid (net of refund) 42 (2)
Net cash flow (used in) operating activities (A) (1,766) (1,646)
B. |Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (21) (85)
Purchase of intangible assets (17) (19)
Intangible assets under development 12 9
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment ¢] @)
Net cash flow (used in) / invested in investing activities (B) (26) (95)
C. |Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from Issue of Preference share Capital 4,900 -
Loan taken from NBFC (vehicle loan) - 55
Repayment of NBFC [ oan (Vehicle 1 nan) (6) (1)
Loan taken from holding company 1,100 1,400
L.oan repaid to holding rompany (3,900)
Expenses towards increase in authorised capital (44) -
Payments of Lease liabilities (195) -
Interest Paid (402) 417)
Net cash flow from financing activities (C) 1,453 1,026
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) (339) (713)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (2,485) (1,771)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note below) (2,824) (2,485)




Indiannica Learning Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2020

CIN: U22110DL1998PTC094399

{Amount in lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
31ist March 2020

For the year ended
31ist March 2019

Notes:
1 Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalent as per Cash Flow Statement
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Cash & cash Equivalent (Note 10) 176 232
Bank Overdraft (Note ) (3,000) (2,717)
Balance as per Cash Flow Statement (2,824) (2,485)

2 Changes in financing liabilities arising from cash and non-cash changes (Refer note 42)

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached hereto

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Partner
Membership Number: 117080

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Indiannica Learning Private Limited
(Formerly known as Encyclopaedia Britannica (India) Private

Limited)

Adnsale

Anil D. Gala
Director
DIN: 00092952

DI

ooy

Sumit Gupta
Managing director
DIN: 00039596

WM~

Place: mumMBA T

Date: 492 JUN 2020

epak Kaku
Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi

Date: 12 JUN 2000

Meera Sawhney
Company Secretary
Mem. No. A48522



Indiannica Learning Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for year ended March 31, 2020
CIN: U22110DL1998PTC094399

1 Corporate Information

Indiannica Learning Private Limited is a private limited company domiciled in India (CIN number U22110DL1998PTC094399); and is
a subsidiary of Navneet Education Limited (‘the Holding Company’ and 'the Ultimate Holding Company'). The Company’s operations
comprises of publishing and sale of educational books with products ranging from school books, reference books, technical &
professional books.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12th June 2020.
2 Basis of preparation
a) Statement of compliance:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’)
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with Rule 3 of the Companics (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for the certain financial instruments, obligations under
defined benefit plans which have been measured at fair value as required under relevant Ind AS.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria
sct out in the division II of Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013, for a company whose financial statements are made in
compliance with the Companies (India Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2016.

b)  Functional and presentation of currency

The financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees which is also the Company’s functional currency. All amounts are rounded
to the nearest lakhs.

2.1 Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition far the intended use.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of Property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the
future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing
Rroparty, plant and aquipmant, including day-to-day repair and maintanance axponditura and coct of roplacing partc, aro charqod
to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred,

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of Property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecoanized.

Parts (major components) of an item of property, plant and equipments having different useful lives are accounted as separate
items of property, plant and equipments.

Depreciation on assets is calculated on a straight-line basis as per the useful lives of the assets prescribed under the Schedule 11
(under section 123) to the Companies Act, 2013, except:

a) in respect of servers and networks where the Company has estimated useful life of 3 years being lower than the uscful life of 6
years as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, based on its internal technical assessment.

hY I eacehnld imnrovements are denreciated over the nerind of leace term nr 10} vears. whirhever is legg

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and in case of any changes, effect of the same is given prospectively.

(b) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognized when the entity controls the asset, it is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the
asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

At initial recognition, intangible assets are recognised at cost. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less -
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if anv. r q"*l >

reviewed al least al lhe end of eals 1epul ng petivd. Changes in the vapecled useful fife vt U expetlud pdlle u u \

sumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered Lo modify the amortisation period or methad, as \
priate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognascd m 3.,1
tatement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrvina value of another asset. ~.__:'
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Notes to financial statements for year ended March 31, 2020
CIN: U22110DL1998PTC094399

(c)

(d)

(e)

The Company has assessed the estimated useful lives of different categories of intangible assets as follows:
a) License is capitalized at the amounts paid to acquire the respective license for use and is amortised over the period of license.

b) Software are amortized over the period of 2.5 years (SLM)

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the stalement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecoanised

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An
asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less
costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. Impairment losses, if any, are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss as a component of depreciation
and amortisation expense.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited to the extent the carrying
amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is carried at the revalued amount, in which case the reverse is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as
current when it is:

> Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

> Held primarily for the purpose of tiading

> Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

>Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the

reporting period.
All vlher assets are classifled as non-current.

A liobility i3 curranl vel e,

Itis expected ta he settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases’ effective from 1st April 2019 and has made transition adjustment as per para
C8(c)(ii) of Ind AS 116, i.e. prospective implementation without changing opening balance of reserves, as notified by the Ministry
of Corporale Affairs in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules, 2019. The adoption of this standard did not
had anv imnact on the loss for the vear.
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Notes to financial statements for year ended March 31, 2020
CIN: U22110DL1998PTC094399

As a lessee
i) Accounting policy effective from 1st April 2019

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

At commencement or on medification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease and non-lease camponent on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liabilily al lhe lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is
initially measured at cost, which comprise of the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date net of lease incenlive received, plus any inilial direct costs Incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located.

The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any
and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line method from
the commencement date over the shorter of lease term of right-of-use asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate. The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value assets and short-term
leases. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an cxpense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

ii} Accounting policy before 1st April 2019
As a lessee

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, are classified as
operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

(f) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subiect to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

(g) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial assct of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

Financial assets

All finaneinl assrts ara racngnivad inilially at fuir valug plug, In tha caco of finanvial assety not reearded ot foin vadue Unougl pufil
or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
The category applies to the Company’s trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, security and other deposits.
A*debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose obiective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI on the principal amount outstanding

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.
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Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) medel for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt instruments and are initially measured at fair value with subsequent
measurement at amortised cost.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance for trade and other receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reportina date. riaht from its initial recoanition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, twelve month ECL is used
to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in the subsequent period,
credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
then the entitv reverts to recoanisina impairment loss allowance based on a twelve month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the entitv expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings
or pavables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other pavables, elc.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liahilities depends nn their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

This category includes trade and other payables etc. After initial recognition, such liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are
derecuyitised ds well as Uiouyh Lhe BIR drriortisation process, Amortsed Cost 1s calculated by taking nto account any discount or
premiurm on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in
the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A finandial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-classification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no re-
dlassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt
instruments, a re-classification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the
business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a
result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external
partics. A change in the business model occurs when the Company cither begins or coases to perform an activity that is significant
to ils operations. If the Company re-classifies financial assets, it applics the re-classification prospectively from the re-classification
date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not
restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and

settle the liabilities simultaneously. 3 ,[_'T‘““-\\
s S sl ™
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(h) Inventories

(i

(i)

Materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Finished goods: Finished goods are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. cost includes cost of purchase of direct
materials and labour. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is determined on a first in first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

The accounting policy for Revenue recognition as per Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ (which was adopted on
April 1, 2018 and did not have any impact on any revenue recognition prior to the adoption date) are as under:

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts
receivable for services or goods provided in the normal course of business. Revenue is recorded net of returns, trade discount,
cash discount. other rebates and taxes (if anv).

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products to customers, which is typically upon delivery of the goods to
the customer, in an amount that reflects the expected consideration to be received in exchange for those products, are recorded at
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade, volume & other discounts.

Substriplivne of digital cotilent dand roydlly for rlght to use license:
Revenue from subscription of digital content and royalty for right tn nse license are acrounted aver the subscription period /
agreement period in accordance with the terms of the arrangement on straight line basis.

Interest
Interest income is recognised as it accrues in statement of profit and loss, using the effective interest rate (FIR) which is the rate

where aporoopriate, to the net carrvina amount of the financial asset.
Taxes

The income tax expense comprises of current and deferred income tax. Income tax is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in the other comprehensive income or direclly in equity, where the
related income tax is also recoanised accordinalv.

Current income tax

The current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates, laws and regulations, which have been enacted or substantively enacted
as at the reporting date. The payment made in excess / (shortfall) of the Company’s income tax obligation for the period are
recognized in the balance sheet as current income tax assets / liabilities.

Any interest / penalties, related to accrued liabilities for potential tax assessments are not included in income tax charge or (credit),
but are rather recognised within finance costs.

The Company periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities at the
reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting dale and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to aliow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

gnqcae%thﬁiaa_sets

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current’]

against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the samer,ta_;qﬂgh’éutﬁéc@f;u"\
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(k) Buniuwing vusls

(n

(m)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a suhstantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the perlod in which they occur.

Employee benefits

The Company’s employee benefits mainly include salaries, allowances bonuses, defined contribution plans, defined henefir plans
and compensated absences.

The pmnlnyee henefite are reconnicad in the yoar in which tho associated servicea ore rendeval by e sl v
a) Defined contribution nlan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entily pays fixed contributions and will have na legal
or constructive obligation to pay fuither amuunls. Under the defined contribution plan, the Company provides benefit in the form of
contribution to provident fund and superannuation fund in respect of certain employees at a pre-determined rate. The Company's
contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized in stalement of profit and loss as they fall due. The Company has no
further obligations under these plans bevond its monthly contributions.

b) Defined benefit plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. Under the defined benefit plan,
the Company provides retirement benefit in the form of gratuity. Under the plan, a lump sum payment is made to eligible
empinyees At refirement or termination of employmant bacad on respective employce salory and years of eapaicice willi Uw
Comnanv.

The cast of providing benefits under this plan is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out at Uhe reporling date by
an independent qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. Actuaiial Gaits and lusses dre recoyiised In full In the
period in which thev occur in the statement of profit and loss.

The obligation towards the said benefit is recognised in the balance sheet, at the present value of the plan liabilities. The Company
does not carry any plan assets. The present value is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows, using interest
rates of aovernment bonds.

All expenses excluding re-measurement of actuarial gains and losses of the net defined benefit liability, in respect of defined benefit
plans are recognized in the statement of profit and Inss as infiered  Re-measirement, of actuarial aning and larans in rerngnirerd
Huvagh ot v cnopwbingrlow Bisoinig e sl i wiien gy seedr. 16 measurcments ane nol tedassliod W Ui stawniont of
profit and loss in subsequent periods.

c) Compensated absences

Compensated absences benefit comprises of encashment and availment of leave balances that were earned by the employees over
the period of past employment.

The Company provides for the liability towards compensated absences on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out as at the
reporting date, by an independent qualified actuary using the projected-unit-credit method. The related re-measurements are
recoanised in the statement of orofit and loss in the period in which thev arise.

Provisions
(i) General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer
probable that an outflow of resources would be reauired to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.




Indiannica Learning Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for year ended March 31, 2020
CIN: U22110DL1998PTC094399

(ii) Contingent assets/ liabilities

Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a
contingent asset, and is recoanised as an asset.

Contingent liabifities are disclosed in notes to accounts when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of ane or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

(n) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity sharcholders of the
Company by the weighted averaae number of equitv shares outstanding durina the vear.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company by the weiahted average number of eauity shares outstanding during the vear.

(o) Fair value measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
nlace either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability
- Inthe absence of a principal market. in the most advantagenie markat for tha asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

Thu fali value OF aic duee ot J Hapility 19 measured using Ue assumplivns Uial niarket partcipants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their econormic best interest,

Ihe Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circurnstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure [air valie, masimizing the e o pedayant obsarvabla Inputs and minime g Y gae of unctns eAlhe i,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical asscls or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilitics on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

{p) Foreign currency transactions

The Company’s financial statements are presented in reporting currency, which is also the Company’s functional currency.
Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which an entity operates and is normally the currency
in which the entity primarily generates revenues and incurs expenses.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the spot rates prevailing at the date the transaction.

Monctary assets and liabifities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the closing exchange
rate prevailing as at the reporting date with the resulting foreign exchange differences recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchan era‘%
the dates of the initial transactions. /& Nt g N\
by ﬁ’ )
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(a)

2.2

2.3

Segment reporting pollclies

The operating segments have been identified taking into account the nature of the products / services, nature of risks and returns,
internal organization structure and internal financial reporting system. In accordance with Ind AS 108, identification of the
operating segment is based on the conditions specified in paragraph 5 to the standard, i.e. the segment engages in business
activities, performance is regularly reviewed by CODM and discrete financial information is available for the segment.

Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with internal reporting provided to the Chicf Operating Decision Maker
(CODM). The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopled for preparing and
presenting the financial slalernents of the Company as a whole,

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financlal statements requires management to make jildgements, stimates and assumptions that
dffieLL thie repuret amounts of tevenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liubilities. Unicerlainly about these assumptions and estinales would 1esull I vulcomes that requlre a matenal
adjustment to the carrying amounl of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions ahant fitire develnpments, however, may changn dug to markat chanyue or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
occur.

{a) impairment nf lirancas

Impairment testing is an area involving management judgement, requiring assessment as to whether the carrying value of assets
can be suppuiled Ly Uie nel preseil value of future cash flows derlved from such assels usiiy cash llow projections which have
been discounted at an appropriate rate. In calculating the nel present value of the future cash flows, cerlain assurnplions are
required to be made in respect of highly uncertain matters including management’s expectations of future growth, discount rates
etc. The company has prepared projections for next 5 years which have been used for the said calculations.

(b) Allowances for doubtful receivables

The management estimates at each reporting date the recoverability of its trade and other receivables. Allowances for doubtful
receivables is estimated based on the best available facts and circumstances, inciuding but not limited to, confirmation from the
customers using the ECL approach. The allowances are re-valued and adjusted as additional information received affects the
amaount estimated.

{c) Defined benefit plan

The cost of defined benefit plan as well as the present value of the benefit obligations are determined using actuarial valuations.
The actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions. These include determination of discount rates, future salary increase
and mortality rates. Due to complexity of the valuation and the underlying assumptions, defined benefit plan obligations are highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions.

(d) Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair value of the financial statements recorded on balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are
determined using valuation techniques including the discounted cash flow melhod. The input to these models are derived from
observable market data where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.

(e) Income taxes

The Company has exposure to income taxes primarily in Indian jurisdictions. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which losses can be utilized. Significant management’s judgement is
required to determine the amounts of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits along with future tax planning strategies.

New standard issued / modified but not effective as at reporting date

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not notified new standard or amendments to the existing standards which would
effective from April 1, 2020.
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4.1

Right of use Assets

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

Office premises

Gross block

As at March 31, 2018

Additions
Disposals/capitalisation of assets

As at March 31, 2019

Additions
Disposals/capitalisation of assets

As at March 31, 2020

Accumulated depreciation

As at March 31, 2018

Charge for the year
Disposals

As at March 31, 2019

Charge for the year
Disposals

As at March 31, 2020

Net book value

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2020

Notes:

For details of other disclosures required under Ind AS 116 on above assets, refer note 36.
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5 Inlangible assets (other than goodwill)

(Amount in Lakhs)

[Particulars Software Licenses Total |
Cost or valuation

As at March 31, 2018 26 3,500 3,526
Additions 12 19
Dispasal i = =
As at March 31, 2019 i 45 3,500 3,545
Addibivi i 1 - (7
Disposal - s -
As at March 31, 2020 G2 3,500 3,562
Accuinululed Ao Usalluin

AS dl Marcl) 31, 2018 i 602 618
Additions 13 482 496
Disposal - > 5
As at March 31, 2019 29 1,085 1,114
Additions 14 484 457
Disposal - - =
As al Maich 31, 2020 43 1,568 1,611
Net book value

As at March 31,2019 16 2,415 2,431
As at March 31, 2020 19 1,932 1,951

5.1 Impairment test for Licenses has been carried out by the management based on the projections for next four years as approved by
the MD. Remaining useful fife of this license is also four years for which projections are made. The value in use of the future earnings
based on the projections is significantly higher than the carrying value of the licenses, Some of the assumptions based on which
projections are prepared based on market estimates and management judgements which have been relied upon by the auditors.

5.2 Disclosures on impairment test for licenses

) Impairment leee ragounivnd £ (reveeranl) In the Gtatemeat of Peafit 0 1044 ean i e 03w ol Tieuong R, W Crosiuus
year: Rs. Nil}.

b) Assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount of brand licenses, are prepared based on market estimates and management
Jjudgements (i.e. Growth rate, EBIT, discount rate etc.)

¢} The monagement lias canival uul seisitivily dnalysls ol discount rate and growth rate considered tn arrve ab valua in use and
accordingly to the same also, there is no provision for impairment required.

5.3 Details of remaining amortisation period and carrying value of intanaibles are as under:

Description Carrying amount as at Remaining useful life as at
[in months]
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019

Software 19 16 9to 26 2to22

Licenses 1,932 2,415 48 60
6 Intangible assets under development

Particulars Mar 31,2020 Mar 31,2019

Software / mobile application

Opening balance 12 21

Add: Additions to intangible assets under development 5 9

Less: Capitalised during the year (16) (19)]

Total - 12
7 Financial assets

At amortised cost Mar 31,2020 Mar 31,2019

(Unsecured, considered good)

51 56

Security depaosits

Total
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8 Deferred tax relates to the following
(Amount in Lakhs)

. Balance sheet Statement of profit and loss
L 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Deferred tax liability
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes (130) (212) 82 (15)
Lease assets net of lease liabilities (4) 0 (4) 5
(134) (212) 78 (15)
Deferred tax Assets
Provision for sales returns 136 171 (35) 15
Provision for obsolete inventories 92 2 92 -
Provision for employee benefits 26 31 4) 1
Provision for doubtful receivables 67 111 (44) 22
Provision for bonus 20 88 (68) 53
341 401 (60) 91
Deferred tax (expense)/income 18 76
Net deferred tax assets 207 189
Reconciliation of deferred tax assets (net) 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Opening balance 189 113
Tax (expense) during the year recognised in profit or foss 22 76
Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in OCI (4) =
Closing balance 207 189

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current
tax habilitios and the deferred tax asscts and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority,

8.1 Considering uncertainties on utilisation of Referred Tax Assets (MTA) has nnt heen rarngnicad on carry forward lossos and

unabsorbed depreciaiton.
8.2 Also refer note 31(c).
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(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Mar 31,2020 Mar 31,2019

9.1

10

1.

10.2

11

12

12.1

13

Inventories

(valued at lower of cost or net realizable value)

Materials 5 5
Less: Provision for Obsolete Material (5) (5)

Finished goods

Manufactured goods 1,863 2,235
Less: Provision for Obsolete Inventory (397) -

1,466 2,235

Traded goods 71 83

Total 1,537 2,318

During the year, the Company has written off Rs. 1 Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. 299 Lakhs) & charged to the
Statement of Profit & Loss.

Trade receivables

Considered good 6,145 7,033
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts & credit losses (293) (399)
Total 5,852 6,634

No drade or ather recelvahle are due from directors or other otticers of the Company cither severally or jointly
with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively
in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally un credit terms of 90 to 120 days.

The Company follows simplified approach & the trade receivables do not contain significant financing
component and accordingly the Company does not separately track changes in credit risk of trade receivables
as the impairment amount represents "lifetime” expected credit lnss. Accordingly, the disclosuie ds required by
Schedule I, Divislon IT as regards {a) Irade Receivahles which have significant increasa in credit rigk & (b)
[rotthe Recehwbies hleh wea cradit Impained owt tuguiuds o addition o eolleetive posl 83333l i
Cutnpanty lias carried out Individual assessment as well, huwever, the amount ot loss allowance to be
FECOUNIEEY ToF Such trade receivables i1s Ks. Nil {Previous vear: Rs. Nil).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash On hand 0 -
Balance with Scheduled Banks

- On current accounts 176 232
Total 176 232

Other bank balances

Margin money deposits (Refer note 12.1 below) 3 3

Total 3 3

Margin money deposit balance represents restricted deposits (along-with accrued interest thereon) under lien
(subject to first charge to secure the company's bank guarantee) placed with sales tax authorities.

Other current assets

Advance to suppliers 107 98

Less: Allowance for doubtful advances (56) (15)

51 83

Prepayments 37 31

Advances to Employees for expenses 32 28
Goods and Service Tax 5 =

Total 124
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14 Share capital

{Amount in Lakhs)

a) Authorised share capital 2019-2020 2018-2019
5,07,00,000 (Previous year: 5,07,00,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each 5,070 5,070
4,90,00,000 (Previous year: Nil) optionally convertible preference shares of Rs 10/- cach 4,900 =
Total Authorised capital 9,870 5,070

- 2019-2020 2018-2019
b) Issued share capital No. of shares  Amount in Lakhs No. of shares Amount in Lakhs

Equity shares
At the heginning nf tha year 443 51,0A3 4,435 493,51,063 4,935
Add: Shares Issued - -

Less: Shares Cancelled / Buy Back = = -

At the end of the year 493,51,063 4,935 493,51,063 4,935

0% Optionally Convertible Preference Shares
At the beginning of the year =

Add: Shares Issued 490,00,000 4,900 = -
Less: Shares Cancelled / Buy Back = = - -
At the end of the year 490,00,000 4,900 - -

Note - The proceeds from issue of shares during the year have been used in accordance with the purpose of the issue.

c) Rights, preference and restrictions attached to shares:
Equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
company, after distribution of all preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion to the equity shares held by the shareholders.
1% Qatinnallv Convertihle Preference Shares
The Company has only one class of 0% Optionally Convertible Preference Shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. Refer note (@) to
the Ltatement ot Uhanges in Equity.

d) Details of shareholders (as per the register of shareholders) holding more than 5% of shares in the Company:

g As at Mar 31,2020 As at Mar 31,2019
Raukiculas No. of shares % hoiding No. of shares % holding
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
Navneet Education Limited, the holding company 493,51,048 99.99% 493,51,048 99.9%%
Optionally Convertible Preference Shares
Navneet Education Limited, the holding company 490,00,000 100.00% . -
Note - As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members, the above shareholding represents legal
ownerships of shares.

e) Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately
preceding the reporting date:
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Equity shares allotted as fully - - B - 116,23,199

paid-up pursuant to contracts
for consideration other than
cash to erstwhile holding
company
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(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Mar 31,2020 Mar 31,2019
15 Borrowings

Non-current borrowings

Vehicle Loan (Secured)

Indian rupee loan from NBFC (Refer note 15.1 below) 44 50

Less: Amount presented under 'Other financial liabilities' (Refer note 21) (7) (6)

Total 37 44

15.1 Vehicle loan (Secured) amounting to Rs. 55 Lakhs was taken during the financial year 2018-19 and carries interest @
10.7044%. The loan is repayable in 48 monthly installments of Rs. 0.92 Lakhs each including interest. Number of
installments remaining as at 31st March 2020 is 26 (31st March 2019: 38). This loan is secured against hypothication
charge created on vehicle and one month installment in advance which is grouped under Security deposits in note 6 'Non-

current financial assets'.

16 Lease Liabilities

Lease liabilities on right of use assets 450 =
Total 490 p
17 Other non-current liabilities
Deferred revenue 12 21
Tutdl 12 21
18 Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity (Refer note 33) 11 14
- Leave encashment 101 a7
Other provisions
- Performance bonus 86 316
- Sales return 1,432 1,657
Total 1,633 2,084
18.1 Current and non-current bufurcation:
N Mar 31,2020 Mar 31,2019
Particulars Current Non-current Current Non-current
Gratuity 9 8 6
Leave encashment 104 97 ~
Performance bonus 86 316 2
Sales return 1,432 1,657 =
Total 1,631 2,078 6
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(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Mar 31,2020 Mar 31,2019
18.2 Movement of other provisions
Particulars EeriSrmance Sales Return Total
Bonus

At April 01, 2019 316 1,657 1,973
Add: additions during the year 71 1,432 1,503
Less: amount used / adjustment during the year (302) (1,657) (1,959)
At Mar 31, 2020 86 1,432 1,518
At April 01, 2018 127 1,157 1,284
Add: additions during the year 231 1,657 1,888
Less: amount used / adjustment during the year (42) (1,157) (1,199)
At Mar 31, 2019 316 1,657 1,973

18.3 Description of provisions:
a) Employee benefits
Refer note 33 for details of employee benefits provided by the Company.

b) Provision for Sales Return
A provision for Sales Return is created based on the past trend of returns.

¢) Provision for Performance Bonus
The Company has made provisions for performance bonus which are expected to be paid in the next year.

19 Borrowings

Unsecured

Loan from holding company 100 2,900
Sccured

Bartk overdraft (Kefer note 19,1 & 19,2 below) 3,000 4,717
Tulsl 3,100 Hht !

19.1 The average rate of interest for the above mentioned overdraft facility during the year is 8.78% per annum (Previous
year 9.46% per annum).

19.2 Bank Overdraft is secured against charge on current assets & fixed assets (both present and future) of the Company,
along with Corporate Guarantee for Rs. 3,000 Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. 3,000 Lakhs) from holding company.

19.3 Intercorporate loan (unsecured) is taken from the holding company (Navneet Education Limited) and carries interest @
8% (31st March 2019: 9%). As per the terms of the arrangement, this loan will be repayable on 25th April 2020.

20 Trade payables

- Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (Refer note 20.3 below) 153 683
- Due to Others 931 2,489
Total 1,084 3,172

20.1 Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 0-90 day credit terms.
20.2 For explanations on the Company’s credit risk management processes, refer note 39.
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(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Mar 31,2020

Mar 31,2019

20.3 Details of the dues to Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises (MSME), as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), as on 31st March 2020 based on available information with the

a)
b)

0)

d)

)

M1

22

Company which are as under:

Particulars 2019-2020 2018-2019

the principal amount remaining unpald to any supplier at the end of 153 651
nceounting year;

tho intcrest duc on above, remaining unpeid W any supplier al Uik eid of - 32
accounling yedr;

the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED 50 <
Act (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier

heyond the appointed day during accounting year;

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making - -
payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year)

but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act;

the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accountii 1y - 32
year; and

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the - =
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually

paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible

expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act.

Dther financial liabilitios

Other financial liabilities at amortised cost

Current maturity of vehicle loan from NBFC 7 6
Provision for Expenses 15 22
Employee Benefits Payable 74 144
Retention money against sale of car (Refer note 21 1 helow) 5 5
Total 101 177
The Company hos retained anount uf Rs. 5 Laklis dydliist Ldl suld dutling v 2ul/-18.

Other current liabilities

Statutory Dues

- Providend fund / ESIC / Profession tax 17 20
- Tax deducted at source 54 105
- Goods and Service Tax 41 74
Deferred Revenue 35 40
Total 147 239
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(Amount in Lakhs)

For the year For the year
Particulars ended 31st ended 31st
March 2020 March 2019
23 Revenue from operations
a) Sale of products
Finished goods (Books) 7,794 9,230
Traded Goods (Books) 32 9
Gross sales 7,826 9,238
Less: Sales discount and incentives (2,455) (2,941)
5,371 6,298
b) Other operating Revenue 126 175
Total 5,497 6,473
23.1 Disclosures of Ind AS 115:
a) Contracts with customer and significant judgement in applying the standard:
i)  The company is in the business of publishing and sale of educational books with products ranging from
school books, reference books, technical & professional books.
The company appies the guidance provided in Ind AS 115 'Revenue from contracts with customer' for
deterining the timimg of recognition of revenue, Refer note 2.1(i) of significant accounting policies.
it For defails of revenie recagnised fram contracts with costamers, rafer nata 23 abova,
i) There are no conbiacl assels arisity fium Uie Cotnpdiy's contract with customers.
b) Disayyreygation of revenue
iy For disaggregation nf reveniie, refer break-up given in note 23 above.
ii) No single customer represents 10% or more of the Company’s total revenue during the year ended
31st March 2020 and 31st March 2019.
c) Performance obligation
i) For timing of satisfaction of its performance obligations, refer not 2(i) of significant accounting policies
of the Company.
if) Unsatisfied (or partially satisfied) performance obligations are due to unexpired contract period in
cases where the contract for Subscription of digital content and royalty for right to use license. The
aggregate value of transaction price allocated to unsatisfied (or partially satisfied) performance
obligations is Rs. 46 Lakhs (31st March 2019: Rs. 61 Lakhs); out of which 74% (31st March 2019:
66%) is expected to be recoanised as revenue in the next vear and the balance thereafter.
24 Other income

Finance income

Interest on deposits with bank 0 0
Interest on Income Tax Refund 5 =
Gain on fixed assets sold / disposed 0 0

Miscellaneous income
- Sundry credit balances written off = 12
- Royalty income 10 10

Total
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(Amount in Lakhs)

For the year For the year
Particulars ended 31st ended 31st
March 2020 March 2019

25 Cost of materials and components consumed

Material consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year 5 5
Add : Purchases 1,747 3,468

1,752 3,472
Less: inventory at the end of the year 5 5
Total 1,747 3,468

26 Decrease/ (Increase) in inventories of finished goods and traded goods

Inventories at the end of the period

Finished goods (Books) 1,935 2,318
Inventories at the beginning of the period

Finished goods (Books) 2,318 1,495
Total 383 (823)

27 Employee benefits expense

Salarles, allowances and bonus 1,855 2,366
Contribution to provident and other funds 112 122
Graluily expense (Refer note 33) 34 30
Gtaff veelfarc capainaca 83 Ly
Totai 2,084 2,632

28 Finance costs

Interest

- On borrowings 402 416
- On statutory dues 0 0
- On leased Asset (Refer note 36) 16 -
Other finance charges 1 1
Total 419 418

29 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of tangible assets (Refer note 3) 61 61
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Refer note 4) 162 -
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 5) 497 496

Total 721 557
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(Amount in Lakhs)

For the year lor the year
Particulars ended 31st ended 31st
March 2020 March 2019
30 Other expenses
Royalty 363 545
Fditorial expenses 228 199
Travelling and conveyance 372 555
Lagistics expenses 377 545
Rusiness promaotion 113 1081
Advertisement and sales promotion expenses /8 105
eyl and professlonal foos 52 42
Rent & Maintenance 51 182
Payment to auditor (Refer note 30.1 below) 10 9
Badl dehls written off 212
Less: bad debts written off against opening provision 212 - -
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts & credit losses 105 79
Allowance for doubtful advances 41 15
Repairs and maintenance
Computers 69 72
Others 14 73
Electricity and water 13 17
Communication costs 45 59
Packing cost 18 78
Miscellaneous expenses 28 86
Total 1,977 3,143
30.1 Payment Lo auditors (including GST):
As auditors
Statutory audit fee 8 8
Tax audit fee 1 1
Reimbursement of axpancoc 1 0
10 9

1 Tnrome tax

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 are:
a) Statement of profit and loss

Current tax = -
Deferred tax (22) (76)

Total tax expenses as per statement of profit and loss (22) (76)

b) Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by statutory tax rate:

Profit before tax (1,834) (2,941)
Enacted tax rates in India 22.88% 27.82%
Computed expected tax expense (420) (818)
DTA not recognised on tax loss during the year 394 750
Related to tax rate change 34 -
Others (30)

At the effective income tax rate (22)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss (22)
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(Amount in Lakhs)

For the year For the year
Particulars ended 31st ended 31st
March 2020 March 2019

c)

32

2.1

Considering uncertainties on utilisation of Deferred Tax Assets (DTA) recognised in earlier years in financial
statements due to losses incurred, increase in DTA (if any) is restricted to increase in deferred tax liabitity.

Details of tax losses:

The Company is having carry forward depreciation losses as at 31st March 2020 of Rs. 2,451 Lakhs (Previous
year: Rs. 1,961 Lakhs) which doesn't have any expiry date and carry forward business losses as on 31st
March 2020 is Rs. 5,498 Lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 4,268 Lakhs) which will be expired in next 5 to 8 (Previous
yoar : 6 to 8 ycars).

Earnings per share (EPS)

The foliowing is a reconciliation of the equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings
per equity share:

Weighted average number of equity shares at the end of the year for 493,51,063 493,51,063
calculation of basic and diluted EPS

Net (Loss) before Other Comprehensive Income available for computing (1,811) (2,865)
basic and diluted EPS

Dasic and diluled earnings per equlty share (3.67) (5.81)

[t duwordatice witn 1na AS 33 'EaFNINGS per share, the impact ol OCPS issued by the Company on the EPS
would be anti-dilutive and hence not considered for calculation of diluted EPS. :
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33 Defined benefit plan

(Amount in Lakhs)

Mar 31,2020 Mar 31,2019
Provision for gratuity 11 i4
Total 11 14

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service

gets a gratuity on departure

at 15 days of last drawn basic salary for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months, The scheme is funded with Life

Insurance Corporation.

The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and amounts recognised in

the balance sheet and changes in the projected benefit obligation.

Net benefit expense recognised in the statement profit and loss

Current service cost 33 34
Interest cost on benefit obligation (Net) 1 2
Fund management charges < =
34 36
Net benefit expense recognised in the other comprehensive income
Re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plan 17 2
17 2
Balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation (133) (116)
Fair value of plan assets 122 103
Plan liability (11) (14)
Changes in the present value of the
defined benefit obliaation (DBO)
Opening dafingd banalit ahliaalion 116 03
nterest cosl 9 7
Current service cost 33 34
Benefils pald (8) (13)
Actuaiial losses on obligation (17) (5)
Closing defined benefit obligation 133 116
Changes in fair value of plan assets
Opening fair value of plan assets 103 77
Expected return 8 1
Contributions by employer 19 35
Benefit paid (8) (13)
Actuarial gain 0 1
Ciosing fair value of plan assets 122 103
The Company expects to contribute Rs. 20 Lakhs to gratuity in the next year.
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:
Mar 31,2020 Mar 31,2019
Life Insurance Corporation [Funds Managed by Insurer] 100% 100%

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obfigation for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Mar 31,2020 Mar 31,2019
Discount rate 6.76% 7.66%
Salary escalation 9.00% 9.00%
Mortalily ratcs 100% of IALM 100% of IALM
(2012 - 14) (2006 - 08)

Employee turnover
Ages: up to 30 years 20.00% 20.00%
From 31 to 44 years 15.00% 15.00%
Above 44 years 10.00% 10.00%
Normal retirement age(Years) 65 65
Average remaining working life (Years) 29.70 30.13

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, prumubgg,aud._u_lj&r relevant
g
-~ T Ear

factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

JLEis fy
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Sensitivity Analysis of the defined benefit obligation.
(Amount in Lakhs)

a) Impact of the change in discount rate Mar 31,2020 Mar 31,2019
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 133 116
Impact due to increase of 0.50 % -5.31 -4.47
Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 5.71 4.79

b) Dmpadl of Lthe change in salary Increase

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 133 116
Impacl duce to increase of 0.50 % h.hb 41
Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % -5.23 -4.43

Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change not calculated.
(Amount in Lakhe)

Maluiily profile uf defined benefit obligation Mar 31,2020 Mar 31,2019
Within the next 12 manths (next annual reparting period) 9 8
Between 1 and 5 years 47 37
Between 5 and 10 years 77 72

34 Contingeat Liabilities & litigations

i} Income tax matters:
During the year, the Company has received demand notice and penalty order from income tax department for FY 2016-17 and FY 2017-18
respectively aggregaling to Rs. 130 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. Nil) against which no provision is made in books and no amount paid under protest
as at year-end. Appeal for the same has been filed by the company against the said demand notice and penalty order with CIT (Appeal).

Future cash oulflows in respect of matters considered disputed are determinable only on receipt of judgments / decisions pending at various
forums / authorities. The management does not expect any outflow in respect of these claims and accordingly, no provision has been recognized
in Lthe financlal statements.

35 Capital Commitments and Other Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for Rs. NIL (March 31, 2019: Rs. NIL).

36 Leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases' with the date of initial application being April 1, 2019. Ind AS 116 replaces Ind AS 17 'Leases’ and
related interpretation and guidance. The Company had made transition adjustment as per para C8(c)(ii) of Ind AS 116, i.e. prospective
implementation without changing opening balance of reserves. Consequently, amounts of 'Depreciation & Amortisation', 'Finance Costs' and
‘Other Expenses' are not comparable with previous year. Also refer note 2.1(e)(i) for accounting policy on leases.

1) A5 alessee
The company has lease contracts tor othice premises and warehouse used in its operations. For lease arrangement with lease terms of 12 months
or less, the Company has applied the *short-term lease’ recognition exemptions.

For addition, depreciation and carrying value of right of use asset, refer note 4.
(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Amount
Interest expense on lease liabilities 16
Lease expenses in case of short lerm leases 51

Lease expenses in casc of low value leases (other than short term as
disclosed above)

Lease expenses debited to lease liabilities 199
Total cash outflow for leases [incl. short term & low vaiue leases) 250
Variable lease payments not considered in measurement of lease

Hiabilitics

Income from subleasing ROU assets =

37 Related party disclosures
(I) Name of Related Parties and related party relationship:

Nature of relationship Name of the relative

Holding Company & Ultimate holding company Navneet Education Limited

Directors / Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) Mr. Sumit Gupta (MD)

(disclosed only where there are transactions) Mr. Tushar Jani (Independent Director)

Mr. Chandravir Das (Independent Director)
Mr. Yasho Verma (Director) (w.e.f, 4th April 2018)

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and relatives as per the Companies | Mr. Pratik Bhasker (CFO) (upto 20th August 2019)
Act, 2013 Mr. Deepak Kaku (CFO) (w.e.f. 21st August 2019)
Ms, Meera Sawhney (Company Secretary)

Post-employment Bepefit Plan Indiannica Learning Group Gratuity Scheme
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(@

(b)

39

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
The management assessed that the fair values of financial asset and financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts.
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, interest accrued on deposits with bank, bank deposits, trade payables and other
financial liabilities, approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The management has considered fair value of security deposits, loan from NBFC, loan from bank, loan from related party, equal to their carrying
value as fair values based on the current market interest rates and other risk factors approximate to carrying value.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the financial assets and financial liabilities by level with the fair value measurement hierarchy :
(Amount in Lakhs)

Mar 31,2020 Mar 31,2019
Level of input used Carrying Amount Level of input used Carrying Amount
in* in*

Financial assets

At Amortised Cost

Trade receivables (net of provisions) NA 5,852 NA 6,634
Cash and cash equivalents NA 176 NA 232
Bank deposits NA 3 NA 3
Security deposits NA 51 NA 56
Financial liabilities

At Amortised Cost

Indian rupee loan from NBFC NA 51 NA 56
Indian rupee loan from related party NA 100 NA 2,900
Bank overdraflt NA 3,000 NA 2,717
Trade payables NA 1,084 NA 3,172

* Level is NA, since valued at amortised cost.
Financial nsk management objectives and policies

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The management reviews and ayrees puolicies for managling each of these
risks whirch are simmarized holow

Market risk

Markel risk is the risk thal the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprise three types of risk: foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk
primarily include Lrade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position for the periods presented. The sensitivity analysis has been prepared on the
basis that the amount of net debt and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant. The analysis exclude the
impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuity obligation and provisions.

The sensilivity of the relevant profit and loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks based on the financial assets
and financia liabilities held at the periods presented.

Interest rate risk
Ihe following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rate, with ail other variables held constant. The
impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.

(Amount in Lakhs)

Change in Interest Effect on profit
Rate before tax
March 31, 2020 1% -30
-1% 30
March 31, 2019 1% -27
-1% 27

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to trade payables, trade receivables.
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Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the
Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.

(Amount in Lakhs)
Effect on profit

Change in USD rate

before tax
March 31, 2020 5% 1.48
-5% -1.48
March 31, 2019 5% 1.92
-5% -1.92
Price risk
The Company is nak expnsed tn any sinnificant price rigk,
Credit risk
Credit risk is {he risk 1hdl connterparty will not meat its obligations under a hinancial instrument or cuslonier cotitruct, lending to a financial loss.

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities, primarily for trade receivables and deposits with banks and other financial

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed based on the Company’s established policy, procedures and conlrol relating to customer credit risk management.
The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low. Out of total trade receivables balance as at 3ist
March 2020, Rs. 89 Lakhs (Previous year: Rs.778 Lakhs) is due from a single customer being the Company’s largest customer at the end of
previous year. There are no other customers who represent more than 10% of the balance of trade receivables. Outstanding customer
receivables are regularly monitored by the management.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company does not hold
collateral as security.

The ageing of trade reccivable and credit Inss allowance is as under:
(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Ageing [based on due date) Total
Upto 6 months More than 6 months

As at 31st March 2020

Secured = - -
Unsecured 5,909 236 6,115 |
Tolal receivables ) 5,909 236 f,145
Allowanice Tor doubtful receivables & credit losses 293
MNet Receivables o 5,852
Eapecled loss rals * 5%

As at 31st March 2019

Jewied - - -
Unsecured 6,440 593 7,033
Total receivables 6,440 593 7,033
Allewance for doubliul receivables & credit losses 399
Net Receivables 6,634
Expected loss rate * 6%
* Expected loss rate includes both allowance made based on age of the recievable and expected loss based on istorical experience.
Movement in credit loss allowance (Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended 31st Year ended 31st
March 2020 March 2019
Balance at the beglnning 399 320
Additional provision 105 79
Amnounts writlen off or utllised 212 -
Balance at the end 293 399

Deposits with banks and other financial assets
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the
Company's policy.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring
unacceptable losses. The Company’s objective is to, at all times maintain optimum level of liquidity to meet its cash and eeﬁa@equirements.

The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. /’ a¥ qu'_.-}é} AN
. — # ] \\

N
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.
(Armpunt in Lakhs)

Particulars Less than 3 months 3 to 12 months 1to 5 years Total

Year ended March 31, 2020

Indian rupee loan from related party 100 100
Bank overdraft 3,000 - - 3,000
Trade payables 1,084 = - 1,084
Indian rupee vehicle loan from NBEC 1 5 37 44
Year ended March 31, 2019

Indian rupee lvan from relaled party 2,900 2,500
Hank overdrall 2,717 - - 2,717
Trade payables 3,172 S - 3172
Indian rupee vehicle loan from NBFC 1 5 44 50

As at year end, current liabilities of the Company are less than current assels. The Company, based on delailed projections does not expect any
significant liquidity risk.

Bank Guarantee
The Company has given bank guarantee to Sales Tax department Rs.2 Lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 2 Lakhs).

40 Capital management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital inciudes issued equity capital, and all other equity reserves attributable to the
equily shareholders. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.
The Company manaaqes its capital structure and makes suitable adiustments in light of changes in economic conditions.
The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus nct debt. The Company includes within net
debt, Loan obligation, trade and other payables and less cash and cash equivalents.
(Amount in Lakhe)
. Year ended 315t Year ended 31st
Particulars March 2020 March 2019
Vehicle loan from NBFC 51 56
Loan from holding company ' 100 2,900
Bank overdrafl 3,000 2,717
Taue pdydUles 1,084 3,172
Less: cash and cosh equivalents -176 -232
Net Debt 4,059 8,613
Frinity * 4,011 L]
Capital and Net debt 8,081 9,577
Gearing Ratio 50% 90%
* Including accumulaled debit balance of profit and loss and equity component 6f optionally convertibie preference shares
41 The Company’s activities during the year revolve around ‘Publishing and sale of educational books'. Considering the nature of Company’s business
and opcrations, there is only one reportable segment (business and/or geographical) in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108
‘Operating Segmenls’, prescribed under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.
42 Changes in financing liabilities arising from cash and non-cash changes:
(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Mar 31,2019 Cash flows Non-cash changes Mar 31,2020
Bank overdraft 2,717 283 - 3,000
Vehicle Loan 50 -6 - 44
Loan from Parent company 2,900 -2,800 = 100
Total 5,667 -2,523 - 3,144
43 Additional Information as required by para 7 of General Instructions for preparation of Statement of Profit and Loss (other than already disclosed
above) are cither Nil or Not Applicable.
44 Previous year figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary.
For and on behalf of the board of directors of
For N. A. Shah Associates LLP Indiannica Learning Private Limited
Chartered Accountanls (Formerly known as Encyclopaedia Britannica (India) Private Limited)
Firm Registration No. 116560 r
D’—/—’F & Anil D. Gala Sumit Gupta
Prashant Daftary M__ Director Manaqing director
Partner TERE 5 - DIN: 00092952\" DIN: 00039596
Membership Number: 11708 == L\}\'y W
Place: MUMBAZT Degfak Kaku Meera Sawhney
Date: 1 2 JUN 2020 ief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Mem. No. A48522
Place: New Delhi
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